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Dear Gerry, 
 
 

Re: Confirmation of E2 zone boundary to protect important Koala habitat 
 
Travers bushfire & ecology provide the following responses to the latest questions raised by 
Council in regard to the extent of core Koala habitat and the functionality of the corridor defined 
by the proposed E2 zone.  
 
Confirm the land identified for conservation and bio certification is accurate and reflects 
areas of core koala habitat 
 
Travers bushfire & ecology reiterates that the Koala survey report has classed the site as ‘core 
Koala habitat’. This is a legislative trigger that causes the preparation a Koala Plan of 
Management (KPOM).  The adjustment of the E2 zone boundary on the basis of core Koala 
habitat designation is not appropriate and not the intention of SEPP44. This is addressed via the 
existing bio-certification process.  
 
Core Koala Habitat (CKH) is defined under Part 1 Section 4 of the policy as “an area of land with 
a resident population of Koalas, evidenced by…”. Part 2 Section 6 however outlines this land to 
which the policy applies and is not based on the areas of Koala activity or usable important habitat 
but rather “land in relation to which a development application has been made and has an area 
of more than 1 hectare, or has, together with any adjoining land in the same ownership, an area 
of more than 1 hectare, whether or not the development application applies to the whole, or only 
part, of the land.” 
 
Therefore CKH is not necessarily the area of core activity or core importance but rather the 
cadaster land ownership to which the development application is made. Where CKH is identified 
the proponent then is obligated to provide a suite of management priorities not just within the core 
activity areas but more so within the proposed development landscape to prevent harm to the 
local population. This includes speed limits, control of dogs, fencing etc. Therefore the trigger of 
CKH to provide a management plan is generally more for the non-important habitat areas. The 
KPoM must be prepared before development consent can be granted.  
 
The attached Important Koala habitat map provides the area that is considered to be important 
habitat for the protection and maintenance of the existing population within the site.  
 
  



 

For the purposes of this correspondence Travers bushfire & ecology confirms that important Koala 
habitat is to be protected. The KPoM has to identify areas of important habitat for the survival of 
the existing population. The KPoM is intended to provide an appropriate conservation area for 
Koala, and stipulate the protection and restoration measures to maintain the quality and 
connectivity of habitat. 
 
For the purposes of reviewing the location of the E2 Zone boundary, the identification of important 
Koala habitat is based on the following premises:- 
 

1. That each ‘low’, ‘medium’ and ‘high’ use activity point as identified by the SAT procedure 
(Phillips & Callaghan 2008) applied over the total site to a grid density advised by Stephen 
Phillips himself, are protected.   

2. Other areas of previous use evidenced by a high number of scratches on trees will also 
be protected. 

3. The protection of the connective links that will enable Koalas to continue to move into 
adjoining areas without being exposed to Dog attack and being forced to travel through 
urban areas 

4. Maintaining sufficient foraging area to support the local population. 
 
I refer to the attached plan of Important Koala habitat that provides the following outcomes as 
follows:- 
 

• Protection of the recorded activity areas mentioned above and most notably including the 
high use area within the south-western boundary, the central northern low use area and 
on Council land adjoining the oval. 

• Maintains the minimum width of the current corridor such that the connective link to 
adjoining lands is not reduced (286m from creek to Councils Oval). In all cases the 
proposed conservation area exceeds the existing minimum connective width. 

• Protects the majority of the preferred foraging vegetation communities that contains Grey 
Gum.  In addition we have protected an additional portion of Forest Red Gum habitat 
adjacent to the high use Grey Gum area in the south, which showed a high number of 
Koala scratch marks on just two trees.   

• Areas that did not appear to have any evidence of scats or scratches and that has limited 
connectivity value has been excluded because there is no evidence that the immature  or 
degraded forest red gum stands has high value to the existing Koalas within this site. 

 
The resulting outcome is a boundary line that is indicative of important Koala habitat based on 
the survey data and analysis within the Koala Survey Report. This results in boundary 
adjustments beyond what is needed to maintain connectivity in the southern and central 
development precincts. 
 
Confirm the E2 is in the most suitable location  
 
Travers bushfire & ecology confirms that the boundary of the E2 zone could be enhanced to 
protect important Koala habitat as show on the attached figure. 
 
Amend the bio certification report to ensure future development does not impact on core 
koala habitat 
 
The adjustment to Koala protection areas leads cause to update the Biodiversity certification. 



 

Preparation of the KPoM after certification 
 
Travers bushfire & ecology considers that the KPoM should be prepared for submission with 
Subdivision DA on the basis of the above information that confirms the area of important Koala 
habitat. 
 
It is concluded that while the proposed E2 corridor maintains connectivity this could be further 
enhanced by expanding the boundary to ensure a minimum width of 300 metres (excepting a 
minor incursion caused by Council's existing Oval) and including additional areas of Forest Red 
Gum and Grey Gum. This would still allow for development to occur subject to mitigation 
measures imposed under a future KPoM and would allow the koala corridor to be protected under 
a conservation management regime.   
 
Should you have any questions relating to this correspondence please do not hesitate to contact 
the undersigned. 
 
Your’s sincerely, 
 
 
 

 

Michael Sheather-Reid | Managing Director 
Accredited Biobanking Assessor (No.204) 

BAM Accredited (BAAS17085) 

 
Attachment 1 – Important Koala Habitat  



 

 
 


